
 

 

Zoning Board of Adjustment 
Regular Meeting Minutes 

February 7, 2024 
     
 
The Regular meeting of The Borough of Florham Park Board of Adjustment was called to order on 
Wednesday evening, February 7, 2024 at 6:30pm., in the Municipal Building, 111 Ridgedale Avenue, 
Florham Park, New Jersey. 

 
Mr. Michael Cannilla, Chairman 
Mr. Jeffrey Noss, Vice Chairman 
Mr. John Novalis  
Mr. Rick Zeien 
Mr. Brian O’Connor 
Mr. Michael Shivietz  
Mr. Ed Facas 
Mr. Marc DeBoer (1st Alt) 
 
Members Absent: 
 
Also Present: 
Mr. Michael Mullen, Esq., Board Attorney 
 
Call to Order: 
 
Mr. Cannilla, Chairman called the meeting to order at 6:30 p.m. 
 
Statement of Adequate Notice: 
 
Mr. Cannilla asked the Board Secretary if the statutory requirements of the Open Public Meetings Act had 
been met.  Board Secretary Marlene Rawson responded that we are in compliance with the requirements. 
 
Board Attorney Michael Mullen administered the oath of office to newly appointed board member, Marc 
DeBoer. 
 
Approval of Minutes: 
 
6. Approval of Minutes from the January 17, 2024 Meeting. 
 
Mr. Zeien made a motion to approve the minutes, second by Mr. Noss 
Roll Call:  On a roll call vote all members present and eligible voted to approve the minutes 
 
 
Extension of Approval: 
 
7.   Bruce and Julie Carter   Application #BOA22-08 
 28 Beechwood Road 
 Block 4003, Lot 6 
 
Applicant is seeking an extension of a previously granted variance approval for building and lot coverage. 
 
Bruce Carter stated that due to financial reasons, the house addition project could not be done at the 
time. They have been trying to reduce costs of the project and are now in a position where they are 
comfortable to move forward with the plan.  However, they did not realize that the resolution of approval 
for the variance had an expiration date of one year after the approval   
 



 

 

He is now asking for an extension of that approval so that he can apply for permits.   
 
Board Attorney Michael Mullen stated that the Florham Park Ordinance allows for a one-time extension 
of variance approval from the date the approval expired.  In this case, the variance expired in July 6, 2023, 
and if the Board is inclined to grant an extension, it could only be until July 6, 2024.  The Applicant must 
have construction permits issued to him and the work started by that date. 
 
There were no questions from the Board members or the public.  Mr. Cannilla asked for a motion. 
 
Mr. Zeien made a motion to approve the extension to expire in July 6, 2024, second by Mr. O’Connor. 
Roll Call:  On a roll call vote all members present and eligible voted to approve the extension. 
 
  
C Variance: 
 
8. Roman Gorbal    Application #BOA 24-3 
 16 Washington Street  
 Block 2409, Lot 2 
 
Applicant is seeking variance approval for excess improved lot coverage and side and rear setback 
encroachment due to a pool patio. 
 
Jason Warner, pool contractor for Everclear Pools, was sworn in.  Roman Gorbal, homeowner, was also 
sworn in.  Mr. Warner stated that the owner, Roman Gorbal has three young children and wants a pool.  
The plan calls for a pool that is situated slightly to the right of the rear yard so that there is enough usable 
play area on the left side.  This is causing a slight setback encroachment. 
 
The variances requested are for setbacks and lot coverage of 35.9%.  The excess lot coverage is mainly 
caused by a patio and paver walkway.  It was confirmed that the lot coverage includes everything on the 
property. 
 
Mr. Warner stated that there is a slate walkway on the front right side that they are agreeable to remove 
in an effort to reduce the lot coverage percentage.  Mr. Warner did not have a scale with him so he could 
not say exactly what that reduction would be. 
 
Mike Cannilla asked if they had a perc test done. Many areas in Florham Park are very wet and do not 
perc.   He asked if they tried to stay within the standards when planning the project.  The new walkway on 
the left is very large and he asked if it is really needed.  He also noted that the hardscape around the pool 
might be able to be reduced and still function well. 
 
Mr. Zeien asked about the block wall and the fence location.  They stated that the fence is behind the 
block wall.  The property is sloped and it needed to be leveled out somewhat.  The fence will be pool code 
at 4-6 feet. 
 
Mr. Warner conferred with his client.  Mr. Warner then asked if the application could be carried to a 
future meeting so that he can explore ways to reduce the coverage.   
 
There were no other questions from the Board members or the public.  Mr. Cannilla called for a motion. 
 
Mr. Zeien made a motion to carry the application to March 20, 2024 without further notice or publication, 
second by Mr. O’Connor. 
Roll Call:  On a roll call vote all members present and eligible voted to carry the application. 
 
 
 
 



 

 

9. Thomas & Stacey Belli   Application #BOA24-1 
 18 Knapp Avenue 
 Block 2414, Lot 11 
 
Applicant is seeking approval for excess building coverage and setback (intensification of a previously 
granted variance) due to existing decorative roof overhang, and excess lot coverage due to existing patio. 
 
Stacey Belli was sworn in.  She said that she recently added an overhang over her garage doors.  She did 
not realize that she needed a permit since it was for decorative purposes.  She was sent a notice and filed 
for the proper permits.  It was then discovered that the overhang increased the building coverage and 
intensified a setback condition approved by an old variance.  The survey also showed a large patio in the 
back yard that was installed without permits.  These improvements put the lot coverage over what is 
permitted in the zone. 
 
The building coverage is now 14.8% where 14.5% is permitted.  Ms. Belli explained that the patio was 
installed in about 2010.  She did not know that permits were needed. 
 
John Novalis said that you needed a permit for that.  If you had gotten one, you would have known that 
there was a lot coverage problem.   
 
Tom Belli, homeowner was sworn in.  He said that the patio was built over gravel.  There are no water 
issues and no neighbors have ever complained in all the years it has been there.  He said that the property 
encompasses a high corner. 
 
Mr. Novalis said that the Board is now put in an awkward situation since this is all built.  He asked if the 
patio could be reduced. 
 
Stacey Belli responded that everything they have is used.  She did not know what she could get rid of.  She 
preferred a flat patio instead of a deck.  She said that they are before the Board because they want to 
keep what they have.   
 
There was discussion on the circular driveway and how to reduce the coverage.  Mike Cannilla said that 
most people do not have a circular driveway.   Ms. Belli said that she realizes that the driveway is large 
but they cannot reduce it.  They need it to easily access the home since it is on a hill and steeply sloped.  
She added that they enter on Circle Road and exit on Knapp Ave.  It would be very difficult without it.   
 
Stacey Belli continued that they lived here since 1999 and they love their house and it is exactly how they 
want it.  She added the overhang for curb appeal and felt it was in keeping with what other homes in the 
area have. 
 
Joe Forgione was sworn in.  He explained that he is the brother and is a developer and engineer.  He 
stated that it is a steep driveway and a retaining wall would need to be constructed if there was a change.  
There is a huge grade drop and a severe slope.  There was further discussion on what would be needed. 
 
Mike Cannilla explained what a hardship is and how it could justify variance relief.  Stacey Belli asked if 
this was bothering anyone.   
 
Jeff Noss asked what would happen if this were denied.  This is already done.  Michael Mullen replied that 
it then becomes and enforcement issue. 
 
Stacey Belli said that no one intended to take advantage.  Mike Cannilla replied that it is not consistent 
with our Zoning Ordinance.  He added that every application stands on its own.  He recommended 
carrying the application and using some time to see if there is a way to reduce something.   
 
Michael Mullen explained that if the application is denied, they could not come back with the same 
request.  They should really think out this. 



 

 

After some discussion, Stacey Belli asked to be carried to the April 3, 2024 meeting  
 
There were no other questions from the Board members or the public.  Mr. Cannilla called for a motion. 
 
Mr. Zeien made a motion to carry the application to April 3, 2024 without further notice or publication, 
second by Mr. O’Connor. 
Roll Call:  On a roll call vote all members present and eligible voted to carry the application. 
 
 
 
 
 
On a motion duly made and seconded the meeting was adjourned at 8:30pm 
 
 
 
Marlene Rawson      February 7, 2024 
Board Secretary 


